MINUTES

WATERTOWN TOWN COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING

WATERTOWN HIGH SCHOOL LIBRARY

TUESDAY, APRIL 9, 2003, 8:00 P.M.

(Rescheduled from April 7, 2003 – due to inclement weather)

PRESENT:
Elaine Adams


Lee Archer, Chairman


Raymond Hebert, Jr., Vice Chairman


Robert Kane


Jean King


Raymond Primini (arrived at 8:05 p.m.)


Paul Rinaldi


Paul Valenti (arrived 8:04 p.m.)


Richard Wick

ABSENT:
None
OTHERS PRESENT:
John Gavallas, Deputy Chief of Police

Frank Nardelli, Assistant Town Manager/Finance Director


Meredith Robson, Town Manager

1.
Call Meeting To Order
Mr. Archer, Chairman, Called the Meeting to Order at 8:02 p.m.

2.
Roll Call
Ms. LaForme, Board Clerk, executed the Roll Call.

3.
Pledge of Allegiance


Mr. Archer, Chairman, led the Pledge of Allegiance.
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4.
Proclamation


Mr. Archer read aloud the following Proclamation for the record:

“Town of Watertown

National Community Development Week


WHEREAS, the Community Development Block Grant Program has operated since 1975 to provide local governments with the resources to meet the needs of low and moderate income, the elderly and others in need within our community and CDBG funds have been used by neighborhood-based non-profit organizations throughout the Nation to address pressing neighborhood and human service needs; and,


WHEREAS, the Community Development Block Grant Program has had a significant impact on our community; and,


WHEREAS, Watertown, Connecticut and other local governments have clearly demonstrated their capacity to administer and customize the CDBG program to identify, prioritize, and resolve pressing local problems such as affordable housing, neighborhood and human service needs, job creation and retention and physical redevelopment, and,


WHEREAS, the Town of Watertown has utilized funds for senior center renovations, housing rehabilitations, revolving loan programs, Town Hall A.D.A. improvements, storm drainage and sidewalks and street improvements for economic development;


NOW THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED, I, Lee Archer, as Chairman on behalf of the Watertown Town Council do hereby proclaim April 21 through 27, 2003 as:

Watertown, Connecticut

Community Development Week


in Watertown, Connecticut, and urge all citizens to join in recognizing the Community Development Block Grant program and the important role it plays in our community.


In Witness Whereof, I have hereto set my hand and Seal of Watertown, Connecticut to be affixed this 7th day of April, 2003.




Lee Archer, Chairman




Watertown Town Council
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5.
Public Participation


Leo Buonocore, Capewell Avenue, Oakville, CT


Mr. Buonocore:  First of all I’d like to congratulate our troops over in Iraq for a job well done so far.


I have a couple of questions.  What is the status of the two empty school buildings?  Do we have to wait another 3 years for someone to make a decision?  The addition at Swift is never going to fly while we have 2 empty school buildings, that’s my opinion.


Why didn’t the Town go out for a second bid on Turkey Brook?  I have all kinds of information on the bidding that took place down there and I think something should have been done a couple of years when this thing was out there.  It’s sad.  I don’t like to knock somebody that is not in the Town anymore, but I was on his case, this is the information I got from him.  I think this project is going to go down in Ripley’s Believe It Or Not.


I was going to ask a third question, but I already talked to the Town Manager about the lawyers that have taken over our Town.  I asked her how many suits are pending in this Town and this is something she has already talked to me about.


Mr. Archer:  As far as the buildings, we are going to come to some sort of a decision on the buildings hopefully before too long.  We are sort of working on, the way things have been done in the past is we sort of piece mailed things, it was what are we going to do with this project, and then what are we going to do with this project, and we’re trying to take all of these building projects and large capital expenses and look at them as a whole and do some long range planning which obviously wasn’t been done, which is why we have those two buildings sitting there.  I agree with you that the Swift expansion won’t pass without that being resolved; I’m in total agreement with that.


The Turkey Brook thing, I couldn’t tell you why it didn’t go out for a second bid.  That all predated me, but I think the way the whole thing was handled from start to finish was kind of crazy.


As far as the number of lawsuits, I saw your letter too that said essentially the same thing.  I guess anybody can sue anybody and if people want to bring suits against the Town we have to defend ourselves against them, I don’t know what choice we have.  I wish we weren’t such a litigious society where everybody thinks they’re owed something, but we are.


Mr. Buonocore:  We talked about commissions and boards, the members are able to say whatever they want to the person up here trying to put something over, with them being protected by an attorney.  In other words I can sit on a board . . . . .
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Mr. Archer:  You’re talking about suits between commissions?


Mr. Buonocore:  Yes, boards being sued, what commissions and boards are being sued?  We don’t know.  What are the answers after these suits are addressed?  Who ends up with what?  The public doesn’t know what’s going on.


Mr. Archer:  It’s a good point.


Mr. Buonocore:  I mean everything is covered by attorneys.


Mr. Archer:  Well we can’t go back and fix anything that has been done in the past, but I know Meredith has been working on a couple of different ways to get the commissions to work together so that they don’t feel like they have to sue each other all the time and maybe they can work out their problems in other ways.


Mr. Buonocore:  I was on a commission and I know how they function.  I know certain people get on boards for their own benefit and they can do whatever they want because they know they’re not going to be liable.  An attorney is going to take care of whatever they say, so this is what I’m talking about as far as attorney’s costs.  Who is being sued?  Planning and Zoning, the Town Council?  When these suits are addressed and they’re taken care of who is making out, we don’t know?


Mr. Archer:  The attorneys are.


Mr. Buonocore:  I know the Board of Education ended up with a $480,000 suit.  That was addressed in the paper, but the Town suits you never hear about.


Mr. Archer:  It’s a good point.


Rico Ceniccola, 150 Pullen Avenue, Oakville, CT  06779


Mr. Ceniccola:  I have some documents to pass out.


Mr. Archer:  I have the response from Waterbury which I sort of anticipated you being here so I was planning on reading it.
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Mr. Ceniccola:  I’m here to discuss the Overlook Avenue street abandonment petition.  It came to our attention that the City of Waterbury never discussed the paving of the street with Watertown’s Water & Sewer Authority who was overseeing the project, therefore the paving of this street must not be allowed.  It was not part of the agreement with the City.  Also, our Public Works Director, Phil Deleppo, had no knowledge that this road was being paved either.  The Water & Sewer Authority told us, they insisted that the paving of this road was added to the contract at the last minute, without their knowledge.  I distributed some documents including a memo dated 10/29/01 which indeed shows that Waterbury’s Mr. Lawler requested the paving of this road unilaterally to the engineering firm Tata & Howard. (Inaudible) so far?


Mr. Archer:  Yes.


Mr. Ceniccola:  So therefore in light of this situation we respectfully request the Council to approve our petition to abandon this paper street.  I just want to reiterate that the Town does not need this road.  It is not wanted by the residents as well.  Our reasons for opposing it are numerous, but one concern is that the street will be so close to one resident’s home that would not only be a problem for these property owners, but it may be a liability for the Town.  For example, snow plowing may cause damage and accidents just like it did in Naugatuck this past Winter where the snow came into the house, right into the baby’s room, I’m not sure what happened from there, but it’s not good, so we’re putting the Town on notice.  I’ve also distributed some newspaper articles showing what happened to some homes this past Winter.  Now I just distributed some photographs showing how close to this new street this home actually is.  I think this is very important.


Another concern if the road is paved is that my nephew, a special needs child, will definitely be affected by increased volume of traffic, and speeding traffic.  Another concern is that folks driving up Pullen cannot be seen by folks pulling out of this new street; it’s a blind spot, with poor lines of vision or poor visibility, and further driving up this very steep hill during Winter months, after coming to a complete stop may be another safety concern because all of the cars there are parked on the side of the street and this may lead to accidents in the future and it has happened already.  So finally a public hearing wasn’t required for this new street, but I still think it was wrong not to get input from the residents.  One resident whom we know personally and who has lived there for at least 50 years, was in such anger and disbelief that they moved.  I think it was fundamentally unfair for the City not to have the courtesy to tell these taxpayers after all these years what they were doing, so in light of the City never discussing this paving with Watertown and adding it to the contract at the last minute, and in light of the resident’s concerns, I have to believe the Council has some real good reasons to justify abandoning this paper street.
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Mr. Archer:  I don’t see where this is clarification of things.  I don’t see where this shows that Frank Jodaitis knew nothing about it.  The attorney who finalized this contract with the City of Waterbury has assured me it was part of the contract.


Mr. Ceniccola:  The Water & Sewer Authority who was overseeing this, insisted that they knew nothing about this.


Mr. Archer:  Here is the letter from the City of Waterbury, we sent them a letter as you requested.


“In a letter dated March 12th, you stated that the Watertown Town Council wanted the City of Waterbury to consider two items:


1.
Will the city of Waterbury agree to eliminate pavement of Overlook Avenue from the project?


2.
Will the City of Waterbury consent to some more limited extent of pavement, for example 5 to 10 foot width to protect for future maintenance, access concerns (inaudible)?


After further consideration the City’s position remains that Overlook Avenue should be paved as planned.  The City of Waterbury’s standard for paved roadway is 38 feet with a 6 foot curbed walk on each side.  The City, after speaking with Phil Deleppo, Watertown’s former Director of Public Works, already conceded this standard for one that was more agreeable to Watertown’s standard.  The final conclusion was to install a paved area that will be only 24 feet wide with curb and no walk.


Blah, blah, blah, niceties


John Lawler


Director of Public Works”


Mr. Archer:  This was cc’d to the Mayor of Waterbury, Waterbury’s Board of Public Works, Roy Cavanaugh, Frank Jodaitis, and of course the file copy, and their position is they’re not going to change their position.


I spent some time up there, I walked around the neighborhood, I sat there about an hour, over 2 different days at 2 different times.  I don’t know where the volume of traffic is coming from that you see, cause I didn’t see any.  In fact, I stood in the middle of the road for about 10 minutes just to see if I actually had to move.  I don’t know why people would cross over there cause I don’t know where they would go.
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Mr. Ceniccola:  It’s pretty busy on Friday and Saturday nights.


Mr. Archer:  So do a lot of streets.  People drive cars on roads, that’s what they make them for.  I don’t see it, I don’t see the issue.  And the idea of the snow going through the window in Naugatuck, that’s Route 63, the plow is going about 60 mph.  If you go 60 mph on that short little block, he’s going to go through the house on the other side of Pullen.  It’s absurd, I’m sorry, but it’s just gotten to the point of silliness.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Plows have to maintain a certain speed to plow, to get the snow off the road.


Mr. Archer:  I guess I just think we’re over thinking this.  And as far as the courtesy to the taxpayers, it was a nice courtesy, I never see any of you folks come in and say hey, you know I ought to be paying taxes for that land I’m enjoying there that you could have paved 98 years ago.  I didn’t see anybody doing that.  I just don’t see it.  I don’t see, I spent time up there, just to check it out, I walked up and down in the area where they put the piping in, I walked around the whole neighborhood, I just don’t see it.


Mr. Ceniccola:  You don’t live there.


Mr. Archer:  You’re right, I don’t, but, so . . . . . . I mean I understand it’s a drastic change, but it’s not one that we’re not authorized to make.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Well I thought you said that you were afraid of breaching the contract and that’s why you didn’t want to do it.


Mr. Archer:  Well it’s my understanding, and it’s in the contract, I haven’t seen anything to the contrary yet.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Water & Sewer told me that it wasn’t in the contract, they had no knowledge of it, and that letter right there shows that Mr. Lawler requested this from the engineering firm and he did this privately, a private discussion without anybody else knowing and this is what Water & Sewer insisted, and that’s why I’m back here.


Mr. Kane:  Do you have something you can, formal from the Water & Sewer Department that states that?


Mr. Ceniccola:  They told me to go through the files, through the Minutes and that’s what I came up with it.


Mr. Archer:  Do you have those Minutes?
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Mr. Kane:  Do you have (inaudible)?


Mr. Ceniccola:  I have that document right here, (inaudible).


Mr. Kane:  That's not what you’re saying.


Mr. Archer:  So we don’t have a contract that says it’s not in there and we don’t have any Minutes from the Water . . . . . I see what could very well be argued as a clarification to the engineering group.  I don’t have a problem looking into it, but I need something more than I don’t want the street paved.  You have not given me anything here, other than we don’t want the street paved and I didn’t check into how close my house was to the paper street before I bought it.  We’re going round and round here, week after week, and I don’t have anything, I don't have anything, you’ve not given me anything to go on.  You tell me it’s not in the contract, but you don’t actually have a copy of the contract to show me that.


Mr. Ceniccola:  I could get a copy of the contract, but it’s about this thick and (inaudible).


Mr. Archer:  So I took the short cut and I asked the attorney who drafted, who helped draft and approve the contract and I said is this in it, and he said yes.


Mr. Ceniccola:  He said what?


Mr. Archer:  He said yes, it’s in the contract, it’s part of the contract.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Well get the Water & Sewer Authority here and ask them because they’re overseeing this project and they say it was not agreed to by them.


Mr. Archer:  Well then they need to contact us and you should facilitate that.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Okay, I mean I’m just telling you what they told me, I’m just reporting to you what they told me.


Mr. Hebert:  Who is they?


Mr. Ceniccola:  Everyone on the Board, well I guess they just changed.


Mr. Archer:  So you spoke to them during Public Participation at their meeting and they said they don’t know anything about it?


Mr. Ceniccola:  Right, back in November, that’s right.
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Mr. Archer:  The Head of Water & Sewer disagrees with you, but that’s besides the point.


Mr. Hebert:  So you talked to the Commission and you’re saying the Commission was not aware of what was in the contract?


Mr. Cenicolla:  They weren’t, they said this was added at the last minute, and they weren’t aware of it.


Mr. Archer:  Wait a minute, first you said they said it’s not part of the contract, now you said it was added at the last minute.  We established 4, 2 meetings ago that it was added at the last minute.


Mr. Ceniccola:  No, we didn’t, we didn’t establish that.


Mr. Archer:  I need something in writing, I need print, I need something, other than we don’t want the street paved and here’s what happened in Naugatuck.  I mean I’m not trying to be rude, but I probably am being rude, but my point is we can’t go around every week talking about the fact that you don’t want the road paved.  I need something to go on.  If it’s not in the contract, then I have something to go on.  I’ve been assured by the Attorney, who represented the Town of Watertown in putting that contact together that it’s in there.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Was it in his contract?


Mr. Archer:  I have been told by the Attorney who represented the Town of Watertown in drafting that contract that it’s in there.  I didn’t want to read the 300 pages either, I wouldn’t understand half of it; that’s why I asked him.


Mr. Ceniccola:  What should we do now?


Mr. Archer:  I don’t think we are going to do anything.  You can certainly find out if it’s in the contract or not.  I’ve been assured by the attorney that it is, so I don’t know what you want me to do.  I mean you’re arguing the point that it’s not part of the contract, but you have no evidence to that, other than Water & Sewer says it was added at the last minute, but if it was added at the last minute, it is part of it.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Aren’t they overseeing the project, aren’t they supposed to be part of the agreement?


Mr. Archer:  How it all came to be, I couldn’t tell you, (inaudible) it’s part of the contract.


Mr. Ceniccola:  That’s what they’re telling me, and they’re telling me that they had no knowledge of it, so how can it be an agreement if they didn’t now about it?
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Mr. Archer:  I have no idea.  That’s something that’s for them to answer.  I don’t run Water & Sewer; they don’t answer to us.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Do you want to speak to somebody from Water & Sewer?  Do you want me to have them call you?


Mr. Archer:  If they feel that it’s a significant enough issue that they want to come to us . . . . . . .


Mr. Ceniccola:  They do, they do, they insisted, that’s why I’m here.


Mr. Archer:  How come they’re not here?


Mr. Ceniccola:  There was somebody who was supposed to be here.


Ms. Adams:  Have we gotten any correspondence from Water & Sewer on this?  Have they sent any letters to the Manager notifying us that they don’t want the road paved?  Have we gotten anything like that?


Ms. Robson:  No.


Mr. Archer:  No, but this did go back to Frank Jodaitis right?


Ms. Robson:  Yea, I talked to him about it several times.


Mr. Archer:  He wasn’t shocked to find that it was in the contract.


Mr. Hebert:  We have a signed contract with the City of Waterbury, and they say they want to pave the road.  Do you want us to breach the contract?  Who’s going to pick up the legal costs if we say we won’t (inaudible) paving this road?


Mr. Ceniccola:  Well they want to pave our road in Watertown.


Mr. Archer:  It doesn’t matter at this point, and I don’t think you were there for all the engineering discussions and everything else, but there are probably some really good reasons why they want it paved.  I don’t know what they are; I’m not an engineer.  All I know is it’s part of an exiting contract, whether the Water & Sewer Authority knew about it or not, it’s part of an existing contract.  If they didn’t know about it, shame on them.  That’s an issue perhaps you need to take up with them.


Mr. Ceniccola:  So I’m just thinking about what I should do now, what next  . . . . .
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Mr. Archer:  Any suggestions, I’ll listen to them.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Well you said that you wanted to hear from Water & Sewer, but now you’re not . . . . .


Mr. Archer:  I’m here every 2 weeks; the mike is open.  If it’s important I’m sure they would be here.  Apparently it’s not that important to them, apparently it wasn’t important for them to know it was in the contract, but . . . . .so I don’t know what . . . .


Mr. Ceniccola:  Well the only thing I can say is there are definitely safety issues here, with that house being so close to the road.  It seems like you’re just not hearing it.


Mr. Archer:  I hear everything you’re saying, okay.  I also drive down Davis Street and see dozens of houses that are 5 feet from the road and I don’t see anyone dying in them, but I hear what you’re saying.  What do you want me to do?  We’re here to carry out requests that the public brings us that are actionable, so give me an actionable thing to do, otherwise we’re just standing here and watching the clock go round.


Mr. Ceniccola:  Okay, thanks.


Ardian Omeri, Pullen Avenue, Oakville, CT  06779


Mr. Omeri:  I think you guys for everything . I  know you tried to help us.  (Inaudible) 3 people are in Watertown and 1 house is in Waterbury.  Fixing my home is very bad.  (Inaudible) very close, like 5 feet away.


Mr. Archer:  Right, I saw that.  You’re the brick house on the corner, right?


Mr. Omeri:  Right.  So what I’m thinking, I know they have a contract and you guys have tried to help us, but is there any way if they even (inaudible) just pull the grass up and (inaudible) just leave it gravel, and that way the cars cannot drive too fast and (inaudible).


Mr. Archer:  Yea, that’s what we asked them and they basically said no.


Mr. Omeri:  With paving if something happened later, a problem, they’ll cut the house down (inaudible).  Paving the road there, all I need is like a couple of feet more away from my house.


Mr. Archer:  Well they went from 38 to 24 feet.  I know that, so that’s . . . .  Thank you.


Mr. Primini:  We’re 50 feet cut down to 24 feet, so it’s been cut more than in half.
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Mr. Archer:  38 was the standard, so they basically cut it in half, so there will be more room there.


Mr. Omeri:  But from which way are they going to start (Tape #1, Side A ended – may have missed some) and all that because if they start paving so come to my house, that’s not good, that’s nothing for me, it’s like they’re paving (inaudible).


Mr. Archer:  Do you have any idea who is going to pave this?  Is this Waterbury or us?


Ms. Adams:  I heard their contractor, don’t forget this all came about because we had problems in the area with the sewage backing up into their basements, and it took a couple of years to come in.  From what I understand is Waterbury hired the contractor who is going to do this.


Mr. Archer:  So who is overseeing this?


Ms. Adams:  I don’t know, I’m not Water & Sewer.


Mr. Primini:  Well Hubbell is the contractor.


Ms. Adams:  I think it was them, wasn’t it their contractor and everything?


Ms. Robson:  Yea, it’s Waterbury.


Mr. Archer:  I mean I understand your concern, and if we can move it over to one side, I guess, if there’s a way to do that . . . . . Meredith, is there any way we can just try and . . . . 


Ms. Robson:  I think typically it’s from the center line, but I can check on that.


Mr. Archer:  Yea, if there is any way we can shift it, that would be nice to give you a little more space.


Mr. Omeri:  The best way for me is like to just put gravel or something.


Mr. Archer:  Well they’re not going to do that.


Mr. Omeri:  And somebody come by and (inaudible) drive fast over there.  So that’s the best way if you ask me.


Mr. Archer:  So I don’t know if that would be (inaudible) if there is some way they can . . . . go as far away from his house.
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Mr. Omeri:  (Inaudible) like 25 (inaudible) if they start from this point, 24 is like I have a road to park a car or to pull the car in the garage.


Mr. Primini:  Well you should be getting an additional 12 feet plus the 5 feet you had, if they’re going to go with 24, cause they usually do go from the center line.


Mr. Archer:  Let’s not make any promises.  We’re going to see if there is any way that when they’re paving that, they can factor how close your house is to it and shift it over that way.


Mr. Omeri:  Will there be another meeting so I can hear that?


Mr. Archer:  Probably not because we’re not the ones overseeing that project, we can request it.


Mr. Robson:  He can call me if he wants.  Just give me a few days.


Mr. Archer:  That’s the quickest way to do it, cause we don’t always know all the little details of what’s going on all the individual projects.


Mr. Omeri:  Thanks.


Mr. Archer, Chairman, Closed Public Participation at 8:38 p.m.

6.
Minutes


A.
Regular Meeting Minutes - March 18, 2003



MOTION:
(Mr. Kane, sec. Ms. Adams) to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes dated March 18, 2003 as presented.



Discussion:
None



In Favor:
Ms. Adams, Mr. Archer, Mr. Kane, Ms. King, Mr. Primini, Mr. Rinaldi, Mr. Valenti, Mr. Wick



Opposed:
None



Abstained:
Mr. Hebert (due to absence)



MOTION CARRIED (8-0-1)
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7.
Sub-Committee Reports


A.
Finance Subcommittee




Mr. Kane:  We have finished the monthly journey to the budget process.  Our last meeting was on March 25th where we were able to come down to a 3.5% budget total, or increase in the proposed budget that we will talk about later this evening.  We have a budget calendar that we will be talking about under Action Items and look forward to the process.




As part of our work we also decided to recommend tonight to the Town Council to increase the tipping fees to the trash haulers from $30.00 to $35.00.  It’s Item 10B later on this Agenda.


B.
Public Works Subcommittee



Ms. Adams:  We met last night because our meeting was postponed due to inclement weather.  One of the things that was brought up during the budget review was the tipping fees for the dump and we reviewed them last night and will forward them to the Finance Subcommittee to be able to review them.  It’s estimated revenues of about $11,000 so something for you to look at and bring a recommendation to the Council.

Roy Cavanaugh reported that we’re looking at about $28,000 in the FEMUR reimbursement for the President’s Day blizzard.  Included in that is the Board of Ed for what they had to do for plowing and sanding/salting, etc.  We’re hoping we’ll get that because right now as of Friday, not including the weather event of Monday, we are $144,229 over budget for salt/sand/overtime, etc.

They are looking to do more proactive, like news releases regarding, you may have seen one (inaudible) with the sweeping of the streets of the sand from the Winter.  That’s so people are aware of when it’s going to happen, how to do it, if they want anything swept up, and how to do it, etc.  We keep putting down more sand, but Mother Nature isn’t cooperating this year.  It already started at the end of last month.
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A couple of months ago you had charged the Subcommittee with back charging the developers for the Town plowing the unaccepted roads.  Roy and Rick and probably Frank was involved in this, got together and came up with some cost estimates regarding the amount of, what it costs per hour for employee and truck.  Questions were raised, so we kind of put it back to Roy to get some answers for us, like administration fees, if you’re going to be billing, there are costs involved, keeping track of it, coming back with a concrete number there along with the A27, the Planning Statute that would allow possibly for us to not allow any type of (inaudible) until all the improvements are done, something else that conversations are going on with the Town Planner and the Police Commission to get the input on that.  There are pros and cons on both ways of doing it.  If you’re looking to bill a developer for something like this, what happens if they go belly up, I mean there are a lot of things, the use of the roads, so hopefully maybe in about 2 months we will come back to the Council for their consideration.

We have on our Agenda tonight a transfer coming out of a couple of line items to fund the Sunnyside Avenue improvements, the culvert and the road there, our obligation of $48,000.  That was something we had hoped to fund in next year’s budget, but the State D.O.T. wants it done now.  That project is valued at over $1,000,000 so something like that, I think the Council would want to support so we could get our responsibility done on that, and needless to say it gets taken out of next year’s budget.

8.
Chairman’s Report

A.
Correspondence



Mr. Archer read aloud the following letters:



“Dear Mr. Masayda:

I am writing to request that my name be removed from the Alternate position on the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Shortly after my appointment my job transferred to a location out of Town which makes it difficult for me to attend the required  meetings.  If you have any questions please feel free to contact me at anytime.

Respectfully,

James Demarest

80 French Street

Watertown, CT”
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“Dear Trish:

Upon receiving your message . . . . . . basically he goes on saying he should have resigned awhile back and apologized for not doing this sooner.



I hereby resign my position on the Watertown Economic Development Commission and wish the Commission well in all future endeavors and continue to support the party in any way I can for years to come.



Respectfully,



Robert McCoy”


B.
Facts and Fallacies



I have nothing; I did but there are a couple of people who aren’t here who they were about so I’m going to move on.


D.
Other



Mr. Archer:  I was going to ask about the snow overtime, but we already got that report.

9.
Action Items


A.
Consider Appointments to Boards and Commissions


The terms of various Boards and Commissions have expired or are expiring.  Appointments must be made to fill these vacancies.



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to Appoint Denise Benemerito, 36 Cutler Street, Watertown, CT, replacing Robert McCoy, to the Economic Development Commission, Term to Expire January 31, 2004.



Discussion:
None



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY
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MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to Appoint Brian Flaherty, 21 Neill Drive, Watertown, CT, Reappointment, to the Scholarship Committee, Term to Expire January 31, 2009.



Discussion:
None



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY


B.
Consider an Appropriation from the General Fund to the Board of Education General Fund for the Special Services Department from the Proceeds of an Anonymous Gift


The Board of Education has received an anonymous gift for the Special Education Department.

RESOLUTION



WHEREAS, the Watertown Board of Education received an anonymous gift in the amount of $20,000 for the Special Education Department;



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council appropriates $20,000 from the General Fund to the Watertown Board of Education Budget.



Dated at Watertown, Connecticut this 7th day of April, 2003.









Lee Archer, Chairman









Watertown Town Council



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to approve a Resolution authorizing an appropriation from the General Fund to the Board of Education budget for the Special Education Department in the amount of $20,000.



Discussion:
Ms. Adams:  I’d like an explanation on this; I’m confused.





Ms. Robson:  They got a gift for Special Education and they want to be able to use that for the things that are outlined in that memo.





Ms. Adams:  Somebody gave cash?





Ms. Robson:  As far as I know.

Watertown Town Council

Regular Meeting

April 9, 2003

Page 18





Mr. Nardelli:  I believe somebody gave a check for $20,000.  It’s basically a bookkeeping entry because they want to be able to spend the $20,000 but they have to appropriate, add to their budget so they will give us the $20,000 as a revenue source and we’ll re-appropriate it so they can expend it on their budget.



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY


C.
Consider Approval of the Fair Housing Resolution and Statement



The Town Council will consider a Fair Housing Resolution and Fair Housing Statement to ensure equal opportunity for all persons to rent, purchase, and obtain financing for adequate housing of their choice on a non discriminatory basis within the Town of Watertown.

RESOLUTION



WHEREAS, All American citizens are afforded a right to full and equal housing opportunities in the neighborhood of their choice; and,



WHEREAS, State and Federal Fair Housing laws require that all individuals, regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, marital status, age, mental or physical disability, lawful source of income, sexual orientation, familial status, be given equal access to rental and homeownership opportunities, and be allowed to make free choices regarding housing location; and,



WHEREAS, the Town of Watertown is committed to upholding these laws, and realizes that these laws must be supplemented by an Affirmative Statement publicly endorsing the right of all people to full and equal housing opportunities in the neighborhood of their choice.



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of Watertown hereby endorses a Fair Housing Policy to ensure equal opportunity for all persons to rent, purchase, and obtain financing for adequate housing of their choice in a non-discriminatory basis; and BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town Manager of the Town of Watertown, or his/her designated representative is responsible for responding to and assisting any person who alleges to be the victim of an illegal discriminatory housing practice in the Town of Watertown.
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Dated at Watertown, Connecticut this 7th day of April, 2003.









Lee Archer, Chairman









Watertown Town Council



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to approve the Fair Housing Resolution and Fair Housing Statement.



Discussion:
Mr. Wick:  The first WHEREAS, refers to the neighborhood of their choice and it may be assumed, but it isn’t clearly stated, that the economic realities of life often times dictate what neighborhood one chooses to live in, and so what I’m concerned about is whether this could be misunderstood or misinterpreted down the road to mean that the economic realities are being ignored.  That’s a concern.

The other concern is does it apply, is it intended to apply to someone who owns a single family house and has a rental unit within that house, does that person have the right to invite or deny access to anybody for any reason, and the reason I ask the question is because I understand the fundamental reasons why these resolutions happen, and I think the basic intent is quite valid, but sometimes unintended consequences happen, so my concern is how is it to be applied, what are the limitations, if any, on the types of structures it would apply to?





Ms. Robson:  In answer to your first concern, this was just a form Resolution that we got, so I imagine you could change it if you’re concerned about the wording on it.  To answer your second question, I would have to double check on it, but as far as I understand, the owner of the property would have to be income qualified in order to get the assistance, so even if your thought was that if they had a tenant they might be able to get the money for it, I think they, the owners of the property, would still have to be income qualified in order to receive the . . . . .
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Mr. Wick:  Well that aspect I hadn’t thought about.  What I was concerned about was the right of a homeowner or property owner to control access to his or her property, and even if that access is via a paying tenant of a rental unit, that owner of the property, the right or the freedom of that owner of the property to have the final decision on who may or may not come on that property, i.e., who may or may not be a tenant, should not be taken away from that person.





Ms. Robson:  I don’t think that’s the intent at all.  I mean I can double check and try and get more clarification for that, but I don’t think that this allows anybody to rent any available property, but I can certainly check on that for you.





Mr. Valenti:  I do this for a living so I have a little bit of an insight as to how these things work.  Your first concern, I don’t know.  I think what this is intending to do is state a policy for the Town of Watertown so we’re compliant in regards to suits brought against us for discrimination in our public housing, #1.  #2, my understanding is, although I’ve had a running little disagreement here with Ms. Kropp, is that a single family resident that’s owner occupied, can exclude for everything except for race, color, national origin and maybe ancestry because of the post Civil War amendments which forbid that.





Ms. Robson:  You mean if they receive the funding.





Mr. Valenti:  No, in direct response to his question of whether or not somebody could, my answer is for a bunch of factors yea, a family with children, they could say no good, sexual orientation, they could say no good, race, color, national origin and a few others though, they can’t.





Ms. King:  This is not just about people that are getting subsidies.  This is about any fair housing, I believe.





Mr. Valenti:  (Inaudible), but I think this is done so that we can say we have a Fair Housing Policy, if somebody says we discriminated against them, well here’s what our policy is.
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Mr. Wick:  Applied to public housing I really can’t quarrel with that, but I’m concerned about the rights of private property owners, whether they be a property owner of an apartment complex or a single family. . . . . .





Mr. Valenti:  Well this is just a Resolution; this doesn’t have the effect of law #1.  #2, whatever State or Federal laws are out there are going to preempt whatever we do here in Watertown anyway, and #3, as I said, it’s my understanding that except for very specific reasons, depending on if they live there and how many units, there is some criteria by which they go, but you would get an exemption and say you cannot rent to certain peoples.





Ms. King:  I read this, we’re committed to upholding the applicable State and Federal Fair Housing Law, that’s the third WHEREAS that goes with the second WHEREAS, and we are in favor of upholding State and Federal laws as near as I can figure.





Mr. Archer:  If I can just respond to your first concern, it says they have a right to full and equal housing opportunities in the neighborhood of their choice, not a right to the neighborhood of their choice.  That’s a drastic difference because the economic realities are kind of . . . . . that they can take advantage of the opportunities.





Mr. Valenti:  And Dick, actually money is a legitimate reason to discriminate, lack of, especially.  It’s a good reason.  They can do that.



In Favor:
Ms. Adams, Mr. Archer, Mr. Hebert, Mr. Kane, Ms. King, Mr. Primini, Mr. Rinaldi, Mr. Valenti



Opposed:
Mr. Wick



Abstained:
None


MOTION CARRIED (8-1-0)
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D.
Consider Appointment of Auditor for Fiscal Year 2002/2003



The Town Council is asked to consider approval of the appointment of Scully & Wolf to audit the Town’s Fiscal Year 2002/2003.  The is the first year of a three year bid.

RESOLUTION


WHEREAS, the Town has requested bid proposals for auditing the financial statements of the Town of Watertown for a three year period;


WHEREAS, Scully and Wolf has submitted a proposal and is recommended because of past performance and rate structure to continue auditing the financial statements of the Town of Watertown and the Watertown Board of Education for the Fiscal Year ended June 30 2003 in the amount of $33,500, which is the first of a three year proposal.


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of Watertown hereby appoints SCULLY AND WOLF, 2670 Main Street, Glastonbury, CT to conduct the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2003 audit.


Dated at Watertown, Connecticut this 7th day of April, 2003.



Lee Archer, Chairman



Watertown Town Council



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to approve the Resolution authorizing the reappointment of Scully & Wolf to audit the Town’s Fiscal Year 2002/2003 financial statements.



Discussion:
Ms. King:  We got two bids, is that correct?





Mr. Nardelli:  Yes, part of the problem is we have to conform to GASBY 34 for the current year, which is a big undertaking.  All of our audit reports are going to be restated, they would basically have to go to a full accrual accounting versus the modified accrual accounting, have to value all the infrastructure, it’s going to be a big undertaking so a lot of the . . . .





Ms. King:  Is this about the same amount as what we paid before or is this higher?
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Mr. Nardelli:  Yes, it’s about $1,000 more.





Ms. King:  So they’re going to do GASBY 34?





Mr. Nardelli:  Yes, the implementation (inaudible).



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY


E.
Consider Setting Budget Public Hearing Date for Fiscal Year 2003-2004 Budget


MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to set the Budget Public Hearing date for Fiscal Year 2003/2004 Budget to be held on Wednesday, April 23, 2003 at 7:00 p.m. at the Watertown High School Auditorium.



Discussion:
None



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY


F.
Consider an Appropriation for Tax Refunds



The Tax Refund line item has been depleted due to Council approved refunds.

RESOLUTION



WHEREAS, taxpayers have applied for Tax Refunds pursuant to Section 12-129, Refund of Excess Payments; and



WHEREAS, the Tax Collector recommended that the Refunds be made in accordance with the provisions of Section 12-129; and



WHEREAS, in order to refund taxpayers who have been approved for their Refunds, monies must be appropriated into the budget line item to expend the funds.



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council appropriates $5,335 to line item 010-50341-043-0102 from the General Fund.



Dated at Watertown, Connecticut this 7th day of April, 2003.









Lee Archer, Chairman









Watertown Town Council
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MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to approve the Resolution authorizing the appropriation of $5,335 for Tax Refunds.



Discussion:
None



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY


G.
Consider Tax Refunds



The Town Council is being asked to approve the refunding of the overpayment of property taxes.

RESOLUTION



WHEREAS, Taxpayers have made application for the property Tax Refunds in accordance with Section 12-129 Refund of Excess Payment; and



WHEREAS, the Tax Collector recommends that the Refunds be made in accordance with the provisions of Section 12-129;



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council approves the following Tax Refunds:



1,290
Chase Manhattan Auto Fin. Corp.
Amount of Refund:
$  129.71




P.O. Box 5210



Type:
M




New Hyde Park, NY  11042-2521




Reason for Refund:  Per Assessor, Account Prorated



1323
Brass City Limousine Services, LLC
Amount of Refund:
$    95.90




37 Colley Street


Type:
M




Waterbury, CT  06708-2604




Reason for Refund:  Per Assessor; Account Deleted



1324
Brass City Limousine Services, LLC
Amount of Refund:
$  170.46




37 Colley Street


Type:
M




Waterbury, CT  06708-2604




Reason for Refund:  Per Assessor; Account Deleted
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1338
First American Real Estate

Amount of Refund:
$  335.02




3445 Winton PL STE 219:

Type:
R




Rochester, NY  14623-0000




Reason for Refund:  Duplicate Payment



1339
First American Real Estate

Amount of Refund:
$1,668.29




3445 Winton PL STE 219:

Type:
R




Rochester, NY  14623-0000




Reason for Refund:  Duplicate Payment



1341
First American Real Estate

Amount of Refund:
$  760.99




3445 Winton PL STE 219:

Type:
R




Rochester, NY  14623-0000




Reason for Refund:  Duplicate Payment



1344
Countrywide



Amount of Refund:
$1,472.30




P.O. Box 5012



Type:
R




Woodland Hills, CA  91365-5012




Reason for Refund:  Duplicate Payment



1345
Zappone, Debra J & Martineau,
Amount of Refund:
$  567.50




  Rene, G.



Type:
R




245 Georgetown Drive




Watertown, CT  06795-0000




Reason for Refund:  Per Assessor; Assessed Value Decreased



1362
Ouellette, Charles, W. or

Amount of Refund:
$    60.61




  Ouellette, Rolande, D.

Type:
M




39 Manila Street




Oakville, CT  06779-9190




Reason for Refund:  Per Assessor; Account Deleted
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1363
UB Vehicle Leasing Inc. Agent
Amount of Refund:
$    73.68




742 Main Street


Type:
M




Oakville, CT  06779-1955




Reason for Refund:  Per Assessor; Account Prorated



TOTAL FOR ALL REFUNDS




$5,334.46



Dated at Watertown, Connecticut this 3rd day of April, 2003.









Lee Archer, Chairman









Watertown Town Council



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to approve the Resolution authorizing the Tax Refunds.



Discussion:
None



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY


H.
Consider Transfers



Town Council authorization is required for the transfer of departmental funding between line items.

RESOLUTION



WHEREAS, expenses in the 2002-03 fiscal year require the Transfer of Funds.



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by vote of the Watertown Town Council, that the following actions are taken relative to the Transfer of Funds:



GENERAL FUND

AMOUNT:
$48,000




NO. 1



FROM:
010-50526-031-1960
Pave Rehab Section IX - $18,780



FROM:
010-50526-031-1691
Pave Rehab – Chip Seal - $29,220



TO:

010-50526-031-1376
Sunnyside Avenue Culvert



REASON:
Engineering services for the Sunnyside Avenue Culvert Project
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CRESSTBROOK PARK



AMOUNT:
$2,500





NO. 2



FROM:
074-50510-123-1972
Crestbrook Restaurant Repairs



TO:

074-50425-123-0000
Small Tools & Apparatus



REASON:
To cover expenses for defibrillators



Dated at Watertown, Connecticut this 7th day of April, 2003.









Lee Archer, Chairman









Watertown Town Council



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to approve the Resolution authorizing the transfer of funds between line items as presented.



Discussion:
Mr. Kane:  Did we not have this in our budget for the upcoming year, this defibrillator, for the Park and Rec Department?





Mr. Nardelli:  This is in the Crestbrook Budget in the (inaudible) budget.





Mr. Kane:  Right, but.





Mr. Nardelli:  Which wouldn’t be used, I believe they want one up there at Crestbrook.





Mr. Kane:  I thought the Park and Rec wanted one up there as well.  It’s in their budget for a defibrillator of Park and Rec to be up at Crestbrook Park.





Mr. Nardelli:  This is in Crestbrook Park’s Fund, Fund 74, which is different from the General Fund.





Mr. Kane:  Well that’s fine, but it’s also in the budget for 2004.





Mr. Nardelli:  I don’t know; I would have to talk to Harry.





Mr. Valenti:  I think he’s pulling a fast one.





Mr. Archer:  A defibrillator in every garage.
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Mr. Kane:  They mentioned the golfers.





Many people talking at once (inaudible).





Mr. Hebert:  It happens.





Many people talking at once (inaudible).





Mr. Kane:  And I’m all in favor of them having a defibrillator, but we’re doing one now and they have one in the budget for 2004, so there’s something wrong.





Mr. Nardelli:  Without Harry here I can’t answer that question.  Harry is the one who requested the transfer.





Mr. Kane:  Well either they get it now, or they get it next year.

Mr. Archer:  Want to make a Motion to Table?

Mr. Kane:  Yea, I’d like to make a Motion to Table.





Ms. Adams:  No, don’t.  We could always cut if it happens to be the same defibrillator, we can always cut that.





Mr. Kane:  When the budget passes.





Ms. Adams:  No, we haven’t approved that yet, we haven’t gone to Public Hearing yet.  We can change it.  It’s better to get it now cause golfing season might start next month.





Mr. Hebert:  Park and Rec wants one up there right, which would probably be for the pool area.





Mr. Kane:  We were told it was for the golfers.





Ms. Robson:  We’ll double check.





Ms. Adams:  We can still approve this; it comes out of their funds and then the other one proves to be a duplicate, then we’ll just cut it.



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY
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I.
Consider Resolution Authorizing a Bid Waiver for the Watertown Police Department Computers


Town Council Authorization is required for any purchase exceeding $4,000 that has not been independently bid by the Town’s Purchasing Agent.  The Police Department is requesting a waiver of the bid process for the purchase of Dell Computers directly from the manufacturer.

RESOLUTION



WHEREAS, Town Council approval is required for waving the bid process and awarding a contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.



WHERERAS, Town Council authorization is required for any purchase exceeding $4,000 that has not been independently bid by the Town’s Purchasing Agent.



WHEREAS, the Watertown Police Department in connection with the State of Connecticut is in the process of upgrading their COLLECT System which is the Connecticut On Line Law Enforcement Communications Teleprocessing System.



WHEREAS, the Police Department has been given the opportunity to purchase Dell computers for the system at the same price as is given the State of Connecticut.



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Watertown Town Council hereby approves a bid waiver to purchase five (5) Dell Computers directly from Dell utilizing the offer given to the Department.



Dated at Watertown, Connecticut this 7th day of April, 2003.









Lee Archer, Chairman









Watertown Town Council



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Mr. Kane) to approve the bid waiver authorizing the purchase of 5 computers directly from Dell for the Watertown Police Department.



Discussion:
Mr. Nardelli:  This is in conjunction with the next item also, Item 9J.

Deputy Chief Gavallas:  Does anyone have a question?

Watertown Town Council

Regular Meeting

April 9, 2003

Page 30

Ms. Adams:  Can you just give us an overview on this and how is it going to benefit?

Deputy Chief Gavallas:  The acronym COLLECT stands for the Connecticut On Line Law Enforcement Teleprocessing System.  That’s our primary means of communicating both locally, statewide, and nationwide to access the data banks, to give us information on protective orders, restraining orders, violent gang and terrorist information files, gun permits, registrations, licenses, suspensions, active arrest warrants, both locally, statewide, nationwide, missing persons locally, statewide, and nationwide, stolen items, national crime information center data, teletypes going to other police departments in other states.  That’s our primary means of communication.  The State is upgrading that system.  They are giving us $19,000 to upgrade hardware and software for us, so in that process the items I need to buy are all under $4,000, with the exception of the Dell Computers.  That purchase will put me over the $4,000 and into the realm of having to bid.  Dell sells computers directly and will give us the price they give the State of Connecticut, who uses Dells in their system and they previously bid them, but that bid has run out and they will honor that price buying direct from Dell. So if you will allow us the bid waiver we can buy this equipment from Dell and get it installed.

I had a conversation with the State today and they are very anxious to get this hardware as quickly as we can, because many of their engineers and software people are retiring, taking an early retirement from the State.  They’re going to be gone and they’re telling me we need to get the equipment in place so they can come out, set it up, and get it operating before these people leave, so that’s why we’re trying to be a little bit (inaudible) to do this.

Mr. Archer:  Does this price include the monitors?

Deputy Chief Gavallas:  The price of the Dell computers they’re going to be terminals with monitors, yes.  And again it’s not going to cost us anything because we’re getting $19,000 from the State.  That money should be here any day now, but if you did the appropriation tonight, I could order the equipment tomorrow.



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY
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J.
Consider Resolution Authorizing an Appropriation from the General Fund for the Upgrade of the COLLECT System at the Watertown Police Department


The Police Department has been awarded a grant which upon receipt will be deposited into the General Fund.  The Council must appropriate the funds from the General Fund for the upgrade of the COLLECT system at the Watertown Police Department.

RESOLUTION



WHEREAS, the Watertown Police Department has received a grant award in the amount of $19,000 for upgrading the COLLECT system (Connecticut On Line Law Enforcement Communications Teleprocessing) currently used by the Communications Division of the Police Department.



WHEREAS, upon receipt the check will be deposited in the General Fund.



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Council of the Town of Watertown appropriates $19,000 from the General Fund for the purchase of necessary hardware, software, networking equipment and wiring for the COLLECT upgrade to be reimbursed upon receipt of the State grant monies as described above.



Dated at Watertown, Connecticut this 7th day of April, 2003.









Lee Archer, Chairman









Watertown Town Council



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Ms. Adams) to approve the Resolution authorizing the appropriation from the General Fund in the amount of $19,000 to the Watertown Police Department for the purpose of purchasing hardware, software, networking equipment and wiring for the COLLECT upgrade.  (Tape #1, Side B ended – may have missed some.)



Discussion:
None



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY
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10.
Discussion Items


A.
Turkey Brook


The Town has received a letter from DECD regarding project termination.



Ms. Robson:  I got a letter from the State asking to sign off on a termination for convenience on the project.  It’s been a project, as all of you know, that’s been around awhile and it has not moved, and the State would like to use the money for other projects.  As I said they’ve asked us to sign off on that which eliminates the funding source, or at least one of the funding sources for the project.  We haven’t yet heard about the manufacturer’s money, although in talking with Larry Wagner and also with the woman at the State who I spoke to about this funding source, said that it’s likely that we’ll lose that funding as well, they just haven’t caught up with us yet.



Ms. King:  I am shocked, (inaudible) say that, horrified that for the past year it seems to me at various meetings we have had, we’ve asked a question about this and the Acting Town Manager at that time simply said oh we’re giving the State whatever we need that basically that we had, I had no idea that this was going to happen.  Maybe somebody else had some ideas this was going to happen but the fact of the matter is it’s gone on for this period of time and I’d like to know how long we’ve known that we were going to lose this money.  It’s sort of like oh yea, the money is going to go away and I had no idea that we were going to lose the money and I don’t know if anybody else had, but it appears as if someone had been telling us, telling the Town that the money was going to go away and that it hasn’t been conveyed to this Council.



Mr. Archer:  Yea, you’re right.  Month after month we heard that Lou was working on it and we were providing more and more information to DECD in the interest of getting additional funding and . . . . .



Ms. King:  Less funding rather than additional funding.



Mr. Archer:  Right.



Ms. King:  I’m really unhappy about the fact that . . . . .



Mr. Archer:  We must have given them the wrong information.
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Ms. King:  I’m very unhappy that we’re losing the money, but I’m more unhappy also that we were not aware of what was going on, whether there would have been anything different this Council could have done, 6 months ago, 9 months ago, should this Council have done something different.  No one asked us to do that, no one brought it forward, instead we were just sort of, oh yea, well (inaudible) going to happen.  And now it appears, as they say, we’re going to lose the other money and my other question on this is are they going to make us give back the money we spent, because I (inaudible) asked Meredith, (inaudible) we’ve spent some of the Small Cities money, we’ve spent Town money, we’ve also spent a good chunk of money from the Manufacturer’s grant.  It’s really a mess and it’s a quiet nightmare.  I’m just surprised that Turkey Brook is not here for our scalps.



Mr. Archer:  I think they might have been if we had been at Polk.



Mr. Valenti:  (Inaudible) show up next time.



Ms. King:  And I don’t want to say this is my fault, but as a member of this Council, we should have known what was going on, and we don’t.



Mr. Archer:  Yes, this is true.



Ms. Adams:  When the first referendum passed, what was that maybe 3 or 4 years ago, when this project went out to bid, this was before my time, Paul correct me if I’m wrong, found out we were $900,000 short . . . .



Mr. Rinaldi:  It’s a little more complicated than that, but that’s the bottom line.



Ms. Adams:  Yea, I know, that’s the Reader’s Digest nutshell version and basically what about a year and a half ago, no it was probably last January, we realized, you know, we picked it up at Public Works and said, you know, we’re short these dollars, what are we going to do.  And we had a lot of people at our meeting.  We had people there who said you’ve got to do it, such as the ones that come here.  We had other people who said you’re going to be taking all my property, I’m not going to have any property left, and there are 3 property owners who have not given any easements to the Town and will not, they’ve told us that.  Basically what it came down to was we didn’t have enough money for the project, can we get more from the State.  I think there is probably something in your office, I know correspondence went back and forth, you know, saying look can we get more money, or if not, where can we go from here, and that’s what we were waiting definitely or not, whether or not they were going to give us the additional money we needed. And then this comes, what, March 14th?  It’s dated February 10th but it was received on the 14th.
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Ms. Robson:  Yea, we didn’t get it until March.



Ms. Adams:  It sat in somebody’s outbox.  So the question is what does the Council want to do?  I don’t even know if we have a shot at begging it back.



Mr. Hebert:  (Inaudible).



Ms. Adams:  Yes.



Mr. Hebert:  (Inaudible).



Ms. Adams:  Yea, there are a lot of issues here.



Mr. Rinaldi:  (Inaudible).



Ms. Adams:  There is another issue here too, it’s a 10 year storm.  The engineering went back and forth on this, and what is the real benefit going to be?  I feel bad for the manufacturers who are behind there, who haven’t come forward, haven’t complained at all, but when they get flooded they basically have to open up their doors, push the water out, their operations are shut down, and that was the $400,000 for the Manufacturer’s assistance money.



Mr. Rinaldi:  This project went on for a long time.  It was first looked at back in the 80;’s, I think 86, 87.  After about a decade it finally went out to Referendum, which I thought it should have gone to Referendum long before that.  After Referendum, as Elaine explained, and she’s right, they had a series of public hearings to determine what the best fix down there was, and it turned out that every time there was a public hearing it was changed.  The people down in that area, they didn’t want the 100 year event, they didn’t want the 50 year event, the 25 year event; they settled on a 10 year event.  Now I’m not even going to go into whether that is effective or not, I’m not an engineer, but I felt at the time, and it might even precede this Council so I’m not pointing fingers here, I thought it should have gone back out to Referendum.



Mr. Archer:  For the additional funds.



Mr. Rinaldi:  Exactly because I felt that by way of the Referendum, we were empowered to go ahead and move forward with this project, so we had a short (inaudible) we should have went back with another Referendum and let the people decide if they wanted to fork over the extra money or not.  We’re going to be perceived now as just sitting on this thing until it went away, which is really not true, but that’s the rap we’re going to get.  I don’t know what the answer is at this point.  We’re going to get a lot of criticism either way.
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Mr. Primini:  Another problem we had was the contractor that was the low bidder has gone out of business.



Mr. Hebert:  This project at one point, there was only a $300,000 difference between what was awarded in the contract and what the cost of the project was.



Ms. Adams:  Yes.



Mr. Hebert:  And basically like you said Paul, the project got castrated over time and the deficit grew.  What are we . . . . you know, it became apparent that we weren’t going to get any more money out of this.  Should we have gone back to Referendum, yea, we could have done that.  Either way I think this project was going to die, when it didn’t get done the first or second time this project was going to die because the needs of the many outweigh the needs of a few.



Mr. Archer:  There were people who were not going to give the easements to have their properties (inaudible).



Ms. Adams:  There were 3 that will not, period.  I mean (inaudible).



Mr. Archer:  So we went to Referendum with a project that wasn’t fully baked first of all, because how were you going to implement it if people weren’t going to give the easements?



Mr. Rinaldi:  If they really wouldn’t give us the easements, all they had to do was condemn them, that’s not a problem.



Mr. Archer:  Why don’t we just condemn them all?



Ms. King:  There are two sides to this.  There’s a lot of reasons why this project doesn’t work, why there wasn’t enough money, who did what.  I go back to the fact, I still am very concerned about the fact that we haven’t made a logical decision about this.  Instead for a year, someone has come in here, Rachel has come in here, and someone said oh yea, we’re working on this, oh something is going to happen.  People have been telling people something is going to happen.  No one has said, gee, the State is going to take our money away cause we haven’t done it.



Mr. Archer:  That’s right.
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Ms. King:  But that’s a separate issue from this.  There’s an issue of our not being informed and our looking, we probably should have a decision, this Council should have made 6 months, 9 months ago.  I don’t think it’s, it’s not fair to now sort of double back and say well it wasn’t a good project anyway and people weren’t going to give us the easements, and all these kinds of things.  We all knew that, but the fact of the matter is, we were being told that the project was going forward and it’s really, for us to sit here and say well it wasn’t going to work anyway, and we didn’t have enough money is just not right either.



Mr. Archer:  No, you’re right, that’s besides the point.  The point is that this is sort of been sprung on us because we were told by someone who was sitting in a position of authority that it was being worked on.



Ms. King:  Yea.



Mr. Hebert:  We just weren’t told that there was no more money.



Ms. Adams:  That’s the thing.  We had asked the State if we have additional money.



Ms. King:  We weren’t being told that this money was at risk, it’s not just eliminating more money . . . .



Ms. Adams:  Right, nobody said this . . . . we never heard that.



Ms. King:  Because this money was at risk.  We thought we had $1,000,000 plus the bonding money.



Mr. Archer:  Right.



Mr. Rinaldi:  When are they pulling the funding?



Mr. Archer:  Do we have a deadline on this?



Ms. Robson:  They sent it and asked us to sign off on it, they didn’t say by . . . .



Mr. Kane:  In here it states that by giving the money back it could be used in another community.  Does that also mean we could use it on another project?



Mr. Rinaldi:  No.



Ms. Robson:  And the 30 days is in response to the bidding (inaudible).
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Ms. King:  I was struck by the irony that we sat here and read a proclamation saying how wonderful the small business program is (inaudible).



Mr. Nardelli:  I have a bond anticipation note outstanding right now for $2,300,000 for this project that each year I keep rolling over waiting for something to happen.  I’ve been doing that for 3 years.  This Summer I’m going to have to either bond that or basically get rid of it.  The money we spent I’d have to bond, save us $200,000, I’d have to bond that and just get rid of the bond anticipation note cause the ordinance was for $3,275,000, that’s what went to Referendum, and that’s what was approved.  $400,000 was Manufacturing, $500,000 Small Cities, and the balance was the Town’s money that we borrowed on, so I basically have to have an answer by the Summer whether I have to bond that money or just pay off the band and bond the money that’s been spent.



Ms. King:  So we’re going to have to bond $200,000 at a cost of $50,000 . . . .



Mr. Nardelli:  Well there are water and sewer projects that are out there too, so I would probably bond everything.



(Inaudible.)



Mr. Archer:  Hey I didn’t know either; I was hearing the same story you were.



Ms. King:  Do we know if we have to give back the money?



Ms. Robson:  They’ve never said that.  I’ll speak to them more about the whole situation, but they never indicated that that would be an issue.



(Inaudible.)



Ms. King:  If we’re not doing the project.



Ms. Robson:  I mean that was spent in good faith.



Mr. Wick:  What happens if we say no, we’re not going to sign this?



Ms. King:  They’ll never give us any money ever again.



Mr. Wick:  I’m serious.  Is this an administrative formality or is there really any decision making power we have on this particular question?
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Ms. Robson:  To be honest with you I don’t know the process yet well enough, but my assumption is it’s just a formality, but I can certainly check.



Ms. King:  Mr. Wagner’s memo says, given the time period, the Town is probably in default of its agreement with DECD anyway.



Mr. Archer:  You would think if we were sent all this information and everything else, if they actually did that, that they would know that . . . . . oh the things I could say if the tape wasn’t on.



Mr. Valenti:  But it seems to me that this has been discussed over the span of this Council and it was (inaudible) Referendum at the prior Council, I guess my point is we can all take a look back at the Minutes in regards to Turkey Brook and see exactly what we were told, which I’m going to do.



Mr. Archer:  I think everyone needs to know that.  Meredith, can we have someone pull that, I know that’s a hideous job for someone to do but . . . .



Ms. Robson:  How far back, last year, last 2 years?



Ms. King:  A year would be good.



Mr. Archer:  Yea, a year ought to do it.



Ms. Robson:  I don’t know this, it could be that because of the situation of the State, that things have just changed at that level, so that what we thought was happening isn’t happening any longer.



Ms. Adams:  You mean with all the budget cuts.



Ms. Robson:  Yea, obviously I don’t know what that has done to projects like this, but . . . . . .



Mr. Archer:  Any other comment on it for now?  Probably want to keep this on as a Discussion Item for next time around, with that additional information.


B.
Discussion and Possible Action on an Increase to Refuse Back Charges


Mr. Kane:  This came up in our Finance Subcommittee meetings and what we found is that we have not raised the fee to the haulers in many years.  Frank, I don’t know if you have a specific number, probably 10 years or so, correct?

Watertown Town Council

Regular Meeting

April 9, 2003

Page 39



Mr. Nardelli:  To tell you the truth I don’t remember; it’s been awhile.



Mr. Kane:  This is a way in these trying times that we’re in, because of the amount of money we’ve lost though the State, that we are able to raise basically $90,000 in revenue annually through this figure, so this is why we wanted to bring it to the full Council tonight.



Ms. Adams:  For 2003/2004 alone, our CRRA tipping fees have raised $6.75 a ton, in one year.  Last year I know (inaudible) progressively going up.



Mr. Rinaldi:  This is going to be something, I gather that if we raise them to the refuse people they’re just going to turn around and pass it along to their customers, me and my neighbors and that’s okay, we sit here and make decisions, but the people out there aren’t, so you know you’re going to hear about it.



Mr. Kane:  We have no control over that.



Mr. Rinaldi:  Over . . . .



Mr. Kane:  Over what the hauler charges the public.



Mr. Rinaldi:  Yea, but we know damn well that when we raise the cost to the sanitation people they’re going to pass it off on the customers.



Mr. Kane:  Well that’s speculation, but . . . . .



Mr. Rinaldi:  Speculation?  It will be reality in a matter of weeks.



Ms. King:  The other point was that we are now at a point where we were charging them less than 50% for what it’s costing us and in the history of this, at various times we have, the charges have always been at least 50% and they may have been more than that, I don’t have the history.  We started when it was like $25.00 and I think the back charges were $15.00, I’m not quite sure about that.



Mr. Nardelli:  It was $10.00, $20.00, $30.00.



Ms. King:  But it always was in proportion to what the CRRA back charges are, and of course the chunk of the CRRA charges that we are now paying are still a result of the Enron, so you can explain that to your neighbors.



Mr. Rinaldi:  I’m not explaining . . . . .
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Mr. Kane:  Would you rather we raise taxes on your neighbor instead?



Mr. Rinaldi:  Either way you’re going to because . . . . .



Mr. Kane:  We’re looking for a way to not raise taxes.



Mr. Rinaldi:  If you raise the garbage fees you’re going to hear about it, if you raise the (inaudible) you’re going to hear about it.  In all fairness if we’re going to raise that, we should look at the Town Landfill and possibly raise the rates up there.



Mr. Kane:  We’ve already talked about that.



Mr. Rinaldi:  This way we can always say out of a sense of fairness we can say we just didn’t take it out of you people, we took it from everybody across the board, and (inaudible) equally, but that’s okay, but at least we’re using a little bit of logic when we do it.



Mr. Hebert:  The realistic (inaudible) if you raise the back charges, they’re just going to pass it on to the consumers, whether it’s us or the general public.



Ms. King:  Are we voting on this tonight?



Mr. Archer:  No.



Mr. Rinaldi:  It’s something that you might want to bring to a Public Hearing and get some feedback on.



Ms. King:  It’s not part of the budget.



Mr. Kane:  We don’t have to bring this to a public hearing.



Mr. Rinaldi:  It’s not part of the budget?



Ms. King:  Well the income from it is included in . . . .



Mr. Nardelli:  We haven’t included the income in our budget yet until the Council actually approves it.



Mr. Valenti:  I think what the public has to understand is implicitly what we’ve been saying, though as to some extent and for some time, for some portion of the (inaudible) been subsidized.
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Ms. King:  And still will.



Mr. Valenti:  And so it’s a wash, if it’s one way through the fee from the guy or one way through mill rate in the Town, but it is what it is.


Mr. Rinaldi:  I haven’t ruled out that I won’t support that.  What are you going to do now?  I have to think about it a little while.  Are we going to bring it back at the next meeting?


Mr. Archer:  I don’t know.


Ms. King:  We have to vote on it if it’s going to happen.


Ms. Adams:  And we have to give notice if we’re going to do it effective such and such a date.


Mr. Archer:  Well I think we were trying to get some input before we decided to put it on the Agenda.



Mr. Rinaldi:  For what it’s worth, this 2 or 3 Councils ago this has been coming up on a regular basis, so it’s nothing new, so if you want to bring it up as possible action, I have no problems with that, I was just throwing some stuff out tonight that you might hear about going down the road.



Ms. Adams:  We have to recycle more so we don’t have these problems.



Mr. Kane:  We are looking for ways to build the revenue base without raising taxes and again we have no control over what the haulers charge the general public; that is out of our control.  You’re talking about something that’s out of our control.  What we do have control over is our own budget and our own ability to raise revenues for that budget.



Mr. Archer:  Or choose not to subsidize things.



Mr. Rinaldi:  Yea, but as far as not having control of what the carrier doesn’t, that’s like a Gene Kelly tap dance, and (inaudible).



Mr. Hebert:  Either way realistically either it’s going to come out of my pocket for the garbage fees, or out of my pocket to pay taxes.



Ms. Adams:  There’s a little difference in the fact that with the raising of the tipping fees is that it’s user driven; whoever uses it drives it.
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Mr. Kane:  As opposed to taxing every single person in the Town of Watertown who may not use it.



Ms. Adams:  And not only us, the residents (inaudible).



Mr. Kane:  Looking for ways to raise revenue in the entire budget.



Mr. Archer:  It makes sense.

11.
Public Participation


Mr. Rinaldi:  I have something to say.  I read something in the packet and I just want to give my opinion and we’ll move on.  Park and Rec I guess looked at that site up on top of Buckingham Street, the Rigowski property, as a possible place for sports fields.  I’m perfectly in favor of open space and I know we need ball fields, but I just don’t think, in my opinion, that’s the right place and I’ll tell you why.  We had a committee about 5 or 7 years ago that worked a long time to come up with possible sites for Town Halls.  The #1 site is where the John Trumbull School is, but one of the other sites that ranked pretty high on that list was the Rigowski property.  The view up there is magnificent.  There’s like 7 acres of land up there, right across the street.  There are access of two streets for that entire piece of property.  It’s like 7 acres; there's plenty of room to build the Town Hall.  I think the site is magnificent, it’s centrally located, easy highway access, and every time, I know I always say myself that the Town Hall is not really an issue anymore, but the fact is it’s going to be an issue somewhere along the line, and I don’t want the same problem we had several years ago, we don’t have any sites.  It’s something to think about.  It’s an excellent site for a Town Hall and I think that before we change it into baseball fields, we should think it through and give it some time and maybe it will work out pretty well.

Mr. Archer, Chairman, Closed Public Participation at 9:32 p.m.

12.
Old Business


A.
Code of Ethics (referred to Ordinance Subcommittee)


B.
Consider the Appointment of One or More Ordinance Enforcement Hearing Officers Pursuant to Ordinance #04-15-02-248


Mr. Archer:  Anybody want to talk about these?  Good.
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13.
Executive Session


A.
Legal Matters


B.
Pending Litigation


C.
Personnel


D.
Land Acquisition



MOTION:
(Mr. Hebert, sec. Ms. Adams) to enter into Executive Session at 9:33 p.m. to discuss legal matters, pending litigation, personnel, and land acquisition with the 9 Town Council Members, Ms. Robson, and Mr. Nardelli.



Discussion:
None



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY


The following people were present during Executive Session:


Elaine Adams


Lee Archer


Raymond Hebert


Robert Kane


Jean King


Raymond Primini


Paul Rinaldi


Paul Valenti


Richard Wick


Frank Nardelli


Meredith Robson


Mr. Archer, Chairman, Reconvened the Regular Meeting at 10:04 p.m.


No Motions Were Made; No Votes Were Taken.
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14.
Adjournment


MOTION:
(Ms. King, sec. Mr. Rinaldi) to Adjourn the Regular Meeting at 10:05 p.m.


Discussion:
None


MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY


Regular Meeting Adjourned at 10:05 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Lee Archer, Chairman

Watertown Town Council

Approved:
_______________________________


Lynn M. LaForme, Clerk

